Oswald, Marina


11/23/63
Dallas - Attorney Henry Wade ... said investigators learned from Oswald's Russian-born wife that he had a rifle of the type used to kill the President and had it with him the night before the assassination.  News CB, p. 2, UPI and AP
11/23/63
Dallas -- main story of assassination.

… Mrs. Oswald, mother of a two-month-old child, was quoted by Wade as reporting her husband had in his possession as recently as Thursday night a rifle matching in description the one used by the assassin.  AP, 4:21 a.m. CST, Frank Cormier

11/24/63
Dallas - Mrs. Oswald told officers through a Russian interpreter she had seen her husband at home Thursday night in possession of a rifle similar to the assassination weapon.

... Oswald's wife said the rifle he owned was in Irving Thursday night but was not there Friday.  AP, Peggy Simpson

11/24/64
Dallas - Interview with Mrs. Ruth Paine on Oswald and his family.

...  Thursday night, Oswald went to the Paine garage where the family belongs were stored.

"I thought nothing of it," said Mrs. Paine.  She didn’t know what he went after, but she remembered he did because he left the garage light burning.

The next day, she found a blanket that had once contained something bulky … lying empty on a work table.

Mrs. Paine said Marina had told police she had once opened that blanket and thought she remembered seeing the butt of a gun.  AP, 6:50 p.m. CST. Patricia Curran

11/24/63
Dallas, [11/23] - Mr. Wade quoted [Marina] as saying that Oswald had a rifle, similar in appearance to that used in the assassination, in their garage in suburban Irving on Thursday night.  She was said to have added that it was not there after Oswald went to work yesterday morning …  New York Times [NY], Gladwin Hill

11/25/63
Belfast, Northern Ireland - An Irish housewife today opened a fund to help the Russian widow of Lee Harvey Oswald.

"I simply want to put into practice what President Kennedy himself always preached, brotherhood and tolerance," he told reporters.  …

"The one thing a woman in distress, disowned by two countries, needs is money and that’s why I want to start this fund.  Like every other woman I feel a deep sympathy for Mrs. Kennedy but my thoughts keep going back to the other widow, the woman nobody wants."

Mrs. Jane Addy, 48, is the wife of an automobile engineer.  AP, 4:54 p.m. EST

11/26/63
Undated [New York] long roundup on “Oswald, the accused assassin."

[third paragraph]  …  His wife knew that he'd bought a rifle.  …  AP, 5:56 a.m. EST, Sid Moody

11/26/63
Dallas - Mrs. Marina Nicholaevna Oswald faces the future today with two tiny children, no money, a stigma on her name and one certain wish.

She does not want to go back to her native Russia.

The 23 year old widow's constant companions are Secret Service agents.

Friends say two magazine correspondents also are with her and she may be selling her life story.  News CB, p. 4, AP
11/26/63
San Antonio, TX - Russian-born Mrs. Maria Pults left San Antonio today to give a helping hand to the widow of the accused assassin of President John F. Kennedy.

Mrs. Pults wants Mrs. Lee Harvey Oswald to come to join her family at her three-bedroom home here.  "I want her to live with us," she said with a broken accent.  "I feel sorry for her, living in America and not speaking the language.  She needs someone who understands."  Mrs. Pults, who lives with her husband Robert and three teen-age children, "sympathizes with Mrs. Oswald's situation."

Mrs. Pults came to the United States 15 years ago from Kiev in the Ukraine.  "Mrs. Oswald can learn English by living with me," she said.  "I can teach her things she might never learn."

Pults, an airlines employee, has agreed to the arrangement.

"I think I can make her come down here with me, if I can see her," Mrs. Pults said with determination.  "When I go after something I usually get it done."

Mrs. Pults, who speaks fluent Russian, spoke to Soviet Premier Khrushchev's son-in-law in New York City two years ago.

"I was able to get my mother in Russia to come to the United States for five months," she said.

"I think I can do it now, too," she said.  "We could be a big help to a woman with children alone in the United States.  We just want to help." AP, 6:44 p.m. CST
11/29/63
That was the last Lee Harvey Oswald's wife saw of him until he was under arrest, charged with the murder of President Kennedy.  Afterward she wept and managed a few words of English: "I love Lee.  Lee good man.  He didn't do anything."  Life, p. 39
12/1/63
Ten persons have offered to open their homes to Mrs. Oswald and her babies, Mrs. Paine said.  New York Times, Donald Janson

12/4/63
Dallas - A Secret Service spokesman said Mrs. [Marguerite] Oswald was not an object of community reaction and thus needed no guard.

Oswald's Russian-born wife, Marina, remained under the protection of the Secret Service at an undisclosed place.  AP, Jerry Pillard

12/?/63
Oswald's wife seems to have been generally ignorant about his activities and particularly about his assassination plot.  When police officers came to ask her, after the shooting, whether her husband had a gun, she said he had, led them to the place where Oswald usually kept his carbine - and gasped, as they did, to find that it was not there and that she had hopelessly incriminated her husband.  Life, Memorial Edition

12/7/63
Dallas, [12/6] - Oswald's wife is still in the Dallas-Ft. Worth area but whether she is being held against her will could not be learned.  Two days ago she agreed to talk to a newsman, but the FBI intervened before the meeting took place.  New York Times, Joseph A. Loftus

12/7/63
Washington, [12/6] - ... Justice Department officials confirmed today that while Federal inquiries are proceeding, the press is being kept from ... Marina Oswald.  She is being closely questioned by the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

Mrs. Oswald is in the custody of the Secret Service in Dallas.  It was understood unofficially that the Secret Service did not make the original objection to press interviews with her.

The Justice Department felt it was both unwise and unsafe to risk publicizing her at this time. New York Times, Anthony Lewis

12/7/63
Washington -- Marina Oswald ... has told the FBI that her husband fired the shot which narrowly missed Major General Edwin A. Walker in Dallas last April, according to informed sources.

The Chicago Sun-Times also reported last night it had learned that Oswald wrote of an attempt to kill Walker in a document found by FBI agents.

The newspaper quoted government sources as saying that the document was found by the FBI among his effects a few days after Oswald was shot to death 11/24 by Jack Ruby.

...  At the time of the Walker shooting, Dallas police reported the bullet was from a .30-06 caliber rifle.  The weapon apparently used to kill Mr. Kennedy was an Italian 6.5 mm weapon, equivalent to about .270 caliber.  San Francisco Chronicle, UPI and AP
12/14/63
Dallas -- paraphrase: Two ministers, the Rev. Louis A. Saunders, executive secretary of the Ft. Worth Council of Churches, the man who conducted burial services for Oswald when no one else would do it, and the Rev. Gaston Foote, minister of the First Methodist Church of Ft. Worth, visited Marina to present her a check for $4,000 from the Grant Avenue Presbyterian Church of Plainfield, NJ end paraphrase.

The gift from Plainfield brought the contributions to the family, left destitute by the arrest and slaying of Oswald three weeks ago, to $12,000.

... Because she has not yet mastered English, the ministers spoke with her through an interpreter.

... Mrs. Oswald can now be reached directly. Box 1407, Grand Prairie, has been rented in her name.  New York Times, Donald Janson

12/24/63
New York - Mr. Morris [George Morris, staff writer, The Worker] asserted that Oswald's Russian-born wife, Marina, "has in her two years in Texas been almost entirely confined to a circle of Russian émigrés there whose hostility to the Soviet Union is notorious."  New York Times, Peter Kihss

12/28/63
Dallas, [12/27] - A member of the Warren Commission and J. Lee Rankin, the commission's counsel, intend to come to Dallas early next year to question Mrs. Marina Oswald, Mr. Rankin said today.

… A Dallas hearing, Mr. Rankin said, would allow local law enforcement officials to hear Mrs. Oswald's testimony.

... Mrs. Oswald, ... who has been kept hidden by the Secret Service since her husband was shot, preferred to testify in Dallas, a spokesman said.   New York Times, Jack Langguth

1/2/64
Dallas, [1/1] - ... Mrs. Marina Oswald ... announced through her attorney that she would like to appear on television to thank the nation for gifts and cash contributions that so far total $23,000.  New York Times, Jack Langguth

1/3/64
Mrs. Oswald is being held contrary to law; there is to be no trial so she is not a material witness; no one has the right to hold her - to do so you would have to go to court and bail would have to be set.  Lane interview

1/3/64
According to the New York Times [date?], John Thorne was retained as Marina's lawyer by James Martin, her business agent.

It was at the suggestion of the Secret Service that Mr. Martin took over management of Mrs. Oswald's personal and business affairs.  Lane interview

1/3/64
The Times has run several stories about one friend who has been permitted to see Mrs. Oswald, and who says the leaks are absolute fabrications.  Lane interview

1/3/64
New York Times quotes suggestion supposed to have been made by Secret Service man to Mrs. Oswald, that it would be safer and easier for her to live in the Soviet Union.  Lane interview

1/3/64
No attribution - Mrs. Oswald has denied she knew her husband owned a rifle.  KPFA, Mark Lane interview, WBAI.

1/4/64
Ft. Worth, TX – Mrs. Oswald complained at a news conference she had not been permitted to see her son’s widow, Marina Oswald, who is under Secret Service protection and also is represented by an attorney and a business agent.  AP, 6:49 p.m. CST, Mike Cochran

1/8/64
Dallas - The business adviser of Marina Oswald said today she has accepted as fact the evidence detailed by police who say her husband assassinated John F. Kennedy.

The adviser, Jim Martin, said the erratic behavior of her husband ... made it easier for her to accept the evidence.

"It was easier for her to do because he had changed since returning to the United States from Russia," Martin said.  "He had become more moody, more unhappy."

Martin said she agreed that the police evidence was valid shortly after President Kennedy died in Dallas 11/22.

… As a result of her conviction that her husband killed the President, she does not plan to sue the City of Dallas, any other government subdivision or Jack Ruby because Oswald, himself, was shot to death.  AP

1/8/64
Dallas - The pretty, 22-year-old Marina remains under Secret Service protection at an undisclosed residence in the Dallas-Ft. Worth area.

[Her business adviser] Martin said in an interview that Mrs. Oswald is "free to come and go as she pleases" but remains guarded.  AP

1/8/64
Dallas - Mrs. Marguerite Oswald said today she doubted a statement that her daughter-in-law had accepted as fact the evidence that Lee Harvey Oswald killed 'resident Kennedy.

The elder Mrs. Oswald ... also demanded to know the whereabouts of the younger woman, saying she hadn't seen her daughter-in-law since Thanksgiving day.

... "I don t believe this statement came from Marina," said Oswald's mother.  "If she did make such a statement, she made it out of confusion or under the influence of someone else."

She said such a statement should come from Marina's attorney or from the Secret Service.

"That man [Martin] doesn't have any right to quote my daughter-in-law," Mrs. Oswald said.  AP, 11:44 p.m. CST

1/8/64
Ft. Worth - The elder Mrs. Oswald, mother of the accused assassin, also demanded to know the whereabouts of the younger woman, saying she hadn't seen her daughter-in-law since Thanksgiving Day.

… She said she had asked the Secret Service about Marina's whereabouts and was told Marina and her children were fine.  She said the government agents refused to disclose Marina's whereabouts.

"I'm the head of the Oswald family and I demand to know where my daughter-in-law and grandchildren are," she said.  AP
1/8/64
Dallas -- Jim Martin, business adviser of Marina Oswald, said today she has accepted as facts the evidence detailed by police who say her husband assassinated ''resident John F. Kennedy.

... "It was easier for her to do because he had changed since returning to the United States from Russia," Martin said.  "He had become more moody, more unhappy."

Martin said she agreed that the police evidence was valid shortly after President Kennedy died in Dallas 11/22.

The pretty 22-year-old Marina remains under Secret Service protection at an undisclosed residents in the Dallas-Ft. Worth area.

Martin said in an interview that Mrs. Oswald is "free to come and go as she pleases" but remains guarded.

As a result of her conviction that her husband killed the President, she does not plan to sue the city of Dallas, any other government subdivision or Jack Ruby because Oswald, himself, was shot to death.

"She just doesn't want to go through a suit in this regard, although I guess she might have a valid suit against Jack Rub for wrongful death," said  Martin.

... Contributions to Mrs. Oswald and her two small children from over the nation now amount to more than $28,000.  AP, 1:13 p.m. CST

1/8/64
Ft. Worth - Mrs. Marguerite Oswald said today she doubted a statement that her daughter-in-law had accepted as fact the evidence that Lee Harvey Oswald killed President Kennedy.

… "I don't believe this statement came from Marina," said Oswald's mother.  "If she did make such a statement, she made it out of confusion or under the influence from someone else."  AP

1/11/64
Dallas, [1/10] - [Officials of the Dallas Civil Liberties Union requested an interview with Mrs. Oswald] to assure themselves that Oswald's widow was not being held by the Government against her will.  The organization received instead a letter in Russian.  …  [She] has been protected by the Secret Service since her husband was shot on 11/24.  She and her two children are living in a private house in the Dallas-Ft. Worth area.  The Secret Service will probably continue to guard her until the Presidential commission ... makes its report, her adviser have said.

Mr. Olds [president DCLU] declined to make her note public until his organization had decided on a further course of action.  "We will not know all the circumstances until we can talk with her first hand," he said.  A text was provided, however, by someone who had seen the message.

"Let me thank you," the note began, "for the attention you are giving me. I don't think you have anything to worry about.

"What you read in the newspapers - everything is correct.  I don't object in the Secret Service guarding me.  I am only grateful for their time.

"I am free to go where I want and see whom I please. I myself don't want to see anybody to remind me of what has happened.  I hope you understand.

"When I feel I'm ready, I would see with pleasure Mrs. Ruth Paine, who is a very nice person.  I hope you also understand that I lived in a strange house.  I wouldn't want to inconvenience, anyone as kind as Mrs. Paine with the visitors I would be sure to receive.

"I also give much time to visits with the FBI.

"I also want to thank you again for being so kind as to worry about me.  I repeat I am in as good a position as one can expect me to be after what has happened."

"The strange house" to which Mrs. Oswald refers is Mrs. Paine's house in Irving, Tex., a suburb of Dallas. New York Times, Jack Langguth

1/12/64
Dallas - Mrs. Marina Oswald was quoted tonight as saying she is satisfied with her seclusion and protection by the Secret Service.

Since [the assassination] Mrs. Oswald and her two small daughters have been living under Secret Service protection at an undisclosed house in the Dallas-Ft. Worth area.

Both the Secret Service and Mrs. Oswald's attorney, John Thorne, said that she has been free to come and go as she wishes.  She has not been available to newsmen. AP, 9 p.m. CST

1/27/64
Dallas - Marina Oswald said today in a copyrighted exclusive interview with station KRLD-TV “the facts” tell her that her late husband shot and killed President John F. Kennedy.

"I don’t want to believe ... but I have too much facts, and facts tell me that Lee shot Kennedy, the attractive 22-year-old native of Russia told Eddie Barker, KRLD news director.

… The petite blonde, who reportedly spoke very little English a few months ago, conducted the interview without the aid of an interpreter.

... "Rachel was born here and Lee's funeral was in Texas and I like to stay, I want to live here ... I want to be an American citizen after I study English, she said.

To date contributions from over the nation to the Oswald family total more than $35,000.

… In discussing her hope to become an American citizen, she said she did not want to go back to Russia.  AP, 6:52 p.m. CST

1/27/64
Ft. Worth - Mrs. Marguerite Oswald said tonight that, her daughter-in-law's statement that Lee Harvey Oswald killed President Kennedy shows "Marina has been in seclusion too long."

... "Where does she get these facts?  Who has been talking to Marina?  I know that I have not been allowed to talk to her and I know many other persons who have not been allowed to talk to her," the elder Mrs. Oswald said tonight in an interview with station KBOX of Dallas.

"For a long time I have believed that a profound effort has been made to change her belief in Lee's innocence," the mother said.

Mrs. Oswald said that it is her belief that all "the facts" to which her daughter-in-law based her conclusion as to her husband's guilt came from Secret Service agents.

... Earlier today, the elder Mrs. Oswald said she saw Marina at the graveside of her son yesterday but Secret Service men prevented them from speaking.  AP, 5:03 p.m. CST

1/27/64
Washington - The Russian-born widow of Lee Harvey Oswald will be the first witness called before the Presidential Commission investigating the assassination of President John F. Kennedy, Chief Justice Earl Warren announced today.  …

... Mrs. Marina Oswald's lawyers will be present and will be perfectly free to ask any questions which they feel essential to bringing out the whole true story, Warren [said].  AP, 9:23 p.m. CST, Sterling F. Green

1/28/64
[No dateline] - Mrs. Marina Oswald [was] interviewed [last night] in Dallas for the Columbia Broadcasting System’s evening news program with Walter Cronkite [by Eddie Barker, news director of KRLD-TV].  [... While the interview was being conducted ... it was announced in Washington that Mrs. Oswald will be the first witness called [before the Warren Commission].  AP, 6:52 p.m. CST]  …

Officials at CBS said that the interview was the first one that Mrs. Oswald had granted.  They said that it had been arranged through John Thorne, her attorney, and that it had not been necessary to get approval from security officials who have been protecting the Oswald family.  Mrs. Oswald, it was said, had put off talking with reporters until she felt she had a better grasp of English.  New York Times
1/28/64
[No dateline] - The mother of Lee H. Oswald said today that she and her daughter-in-law almost met accidentally at Oswald's grave yesterday, but that Secret Service agents had kept them apart.

The two have been separated since the funeral for Oswald.

… Mrs. Oswald said the "Secret Service agents whisked my daughter-in-law away the minute they spotted me.  She didn't have a chance to say anything."

… Mrs. Oswald said:

"They had no right keeping me from speaking to my daughter-in-law and granddaughter."  New York Times [AP]

1/30/64
[Mark] Lane told the Guardian: "If a defendant were held incommunicado for 48 hours the Chief Justice and all of his colleagues on the Supreme Court would throw his confession out as tainted and absolutely worthless.  The commission, however, evidently is going to rely upon the testimony of a 22-year-old Russian girl, living in a foreign country, held incommunicado for eight weeks and brainwashed by the FBI and Secret Service during that time. ..."

… has been kept in seclusion by the Secret Service since shortly after the Kennedy shooting, and visits by her relatives and friends and by Lane have been balked by bland statements that she does not wish to see anyone.  National Guardian

2/64
Instances of Oswald's beating of Marina and bad treatment of her.  The Torch is Passed, p. 64

2/64
Marina Oswald had been taken to the home of Irving Police Chief C. J. Wirasnik for her own protection [when?] and was watching the news of her husband's shooting on television.

… Her mother-in-law was outside in a patrol car listening to the police radio and got the news first.

"Now it's all over with," she cried, running into the house.

"I want to see him, I want to see him!" sobbed Marina in English.  The Torch is Passed, p. 78

2/4/64
Washington, [2/3] – … The smartly dressed Mrs. Oswald was whisked in and out of the building where she testified under oath before the Commission.  She was not permitted to make any public statements by the Secret Service, whose agents escorted her.  New York Times, William M. Blair

2/4/64
Washington - … Warren said Mrs. Oswald is a free agent, despite the four Secret Service men who constantly surround her on trips to and from the Commission headquarters.

The agents are for her protection, Warren said, and are present in accordance with her wishes and those of her lawyer.

… Mrs. Oswald is not even under a pledge of secrecy, Warren added, “although there are some things we wouldn’t like her to talk about."  The Commission has no power to prevent her from speaking to reporters if she wishes, he said, but it is her lawyers feeling that this is not the time or place.  AP, 6:14 p.m. CST, Sterling F. Green

2/5/64
Washington - ... It is incorrect, Warren said, to describe her well-guarded seclusion as "protective custody."  She is under no restraint whatsoever; the careful watch on her and her daughters is her own wish.  AP, 1:52 a.m. EST, Sterling F. Green

2/5/64
Washington -- Chief Justice Earl Warren said today Mrs. Marina Oswald's "helpful" testimony has substantiated in detail her statements in November linking Lee Harvey Oswald to the assassination of President Kennedy.

...  Other sources disclosed that Mrs. Oswald made it clear that she is convinced that Oswald ... not only fired the fatal shots at Kennedy, but also used the carbine, fitted with telescopic sights, to fire at Major General Edwin A. Walker last 4/10 in his Dallas home.

...  Officials disclosed last month that Mrs. Oswald told investigators in Texas that Oswald came home elated and excited the night of 4/10, boasting that he had fired on Walker.  AP, 7:28 p.m. CST, Sterling Green

2/6/64
- Why has no one - except the rival TV networks which were frozen out - objected to the appearance on CBS before millions of Americans of Marina Oswald, exactly one week before her private session with the Commission?

- Why, if it is so vitally concerned with national security, did the Commission not insist that Mrs. Oswald's first testimony be made before the Commission - particularly in view of the fact that Mrs. Oswald had been held incommunicado by the federal police [in a perfect setting for brainwashing] for nine weeks; and why did the commission not object to this incredible state of affairs?  National Guardian, editorial

2/6/64
Washington -- Mrs. Marina Oswald identified today the rifle presumably used by President Kennedy's assassin as the mail order weapon bought by her husband, Lee Harvey Oswald, 24.

Chief Justice Earl Warren told reports that Oswald's Russian-born widow disclosed he had used the fictitious name of "A. Hidell" in New Orleans – the name used when the Italian-made carbine was bought from a Chicago company last May.

She said that "while she did not like to believe her husband killed President Kennedy, the facts presented to her since the assassination would not permit her to reach any other conclusion," said a prepared statement issued by Warren as head of a special inquiry commission.

...  Other sources have reported that the whole laborious questioning of Mrs. Oswald did nothing to undermine the findings of the FBI.  ...  AP, 5:34 p.m. CST, Sterling Green

2/8/64
Washington, [2/7] - … Mr. Thorne disclosed that donations to Mrs. Oswald totaled more than $35,000, and had been placed in a trust fund administered by a bank.  New York Times, William M. Blair

2/8/64
Dallas – [Story on return of Marina Oswald from Washington, after testifying before Warren Commission:]

… Asked if she had seen anyone officially in Washington other than the Warren commission, she nodded yes, but made no other comment.  AP, 12:51 a.m. CST

2/8/64
"Marina Oswald has been brainwashed by the Secret Service.  She was held incommunicado for eight weeks, and knows nothing that has not been told to her by Secret Service agents.

"Among other things, she told the Dallas police on Friday, 11/22, that the rifle shown her was not her husband's rifle.  Cross-examination would bring this contradiction out in an open hearing."  News CB, George Dushek, account of Mark Lane press conference.

2/8/64
Washington, [2/7] -… Answering questions in a television studio here, Mrs. [Marina] Oswald said she did not want to talk with Oswald's mother, Mrs. Marguerite Oswald of Ft. Worth, because she was "too much bad for me."  New York Times, William M. Blair

2/9/64
During protective custody the only people Marina saw, other than FBI and Secret Service, were Oswald's brother Robert and one minister. Lane talk

2/9/64
As to the story that Oswald did not want Marina to learn English: he enrolled her in a school so that she could learn the language.

See Oswald, Marina, 5/64, Esquire
2/9/64
While Marina was in protective custody, Thorne [John Thorne, Grand Prairie attorney who represents Marina.  He was obtained by the Secret Service through [James] Martin, the former public relations director of the motel where the Secret Service first kept Marina and other members of Oswald's family.  Martin is the business agent for Marina.  He got his job through the Secret Service because the Secret Service "felt that Marina should have a business agent."  Lane brief] took many pictures of her and sold them to European newspapers and magazines.  Lane talk

2/11/64
Washington - Mrs. Marguerite Oswald testified today that her daughter-in-law, Marina, told police on 11/22 that the presumed weapon of President Kennedy's assassination "did not look like" the rifle owned by Lee Harvey Oswald.

The testimony of the elder Mrs. Oswald, given behind closed doors. ... was passed on the reporters by Mark Lane, New York attorney retained by her to represent her son.

Lane, accompanied Mrs. Oswald to her second day of testimony, but already had been refused the right to be present and cross-examine committee witnesses in what he call the commission's "star chambers proceedings.

... The older Mrs. Oswald said Marina was taken to police headquarters on the afternoon of the assassination, and later told her mother-in-law: "Momma, they asked me if Lee owned a gun, and I told them, yes."

The older woman then said Marina told her the police showed her the Italian-made carbine ... and asked if that weapon was Oswald's gun.

The daughter-in-law's reply, as quoted by the older woman, was:

"Momma, I told them I did not think so, because it did not look like Lee's gun."

In her four days of testimony last week … the young widow testified that the weapon now in FBI custody was, in fact, the weapon that Oswald bought by mail order in March and kept at their home.  AP, 2:43 p.m. CST Sterling Green

2/11/64
Washington - Noting that [Marina] ... testified last week that the presumed assassination weapon was in fact the rifle which Oswald purchased by mail last March and kept in their home, Lane said the discrepancy between that testimony and her earlier words to her mother-in-law indicated she had been "brainwashed."

"That was the only evidence that would be admissible in court," he said.

"The testimony today, therefore, tends too weaken the only valid testimony given by Marina and tends to show what her impression was when it was freshest.  It indicates that there has been a classical example of brainwashing."  AP, 7:44 p.m. CST, Sterling Green

2/12/64
Washington, [2/11] - … [Mark] Lane said the Oswald family had not been given any protection by the Secret Service and Federal Bureau of Investigation until after Oswald had been shot.  Then they were taken to a motel.  New York Times, William M. Blair

2/12/64
Washington, [2/11] - … [Lane] said the Oswald family had not been given any protection by the Secret Service and Federal Bureau of Investigation until after Oswald had been shot.  Then they were taken to a motel.  New York Times, William M. Blair

2/14/64
... From all parts of the U.S. money and bundles of clothing began pouring in for Marina.  Virtually penniless all her life, she has received about $36,000 in gifts from sympathetic Americans.  At the advice of James Martin, who quit his job as a Dallas motel manager to become her business agent, Marina has set up a $35,000 trust fund for the children.  It took some doing.  Dallas First National Bank ["Give us the Opportunity to Say Yes"] said no.  The fund was finally lodged with a small bank in nearby Grand Prairie.  …  Time, p. 20

2/17/64
Dallas - … James H. Martin said today [that] Mrs. Oswald and her two small children are still living with [him] and his family in Dallas.  She intends to move to a private house as soon as a suitable place can be found.

Mr. Martin said that Mrs. Oswald would probably rent a house "for a while, until she sees what she likes."

Then she intends to buy a home in this area.  …

The Secret Service agents who had guarded Mrs. Oswald and her children since Oswald was killed have been withdrawn, Mr. Martin said.   New York Times, Jack Langguth

2/17/64
Dallas, [2/16] [Ruby trial begins tomorrow and Marina shows little interest it in, says James Martin, her business adviser.]

… Her adviser said Marina Oswald has sold the book rights to her memoirs to Meredith Press in Des Moines, IA; The motion picture rights have been sold to Tex-Italia Films, an Italian company with offices in Rome and Los Angeles.

Negotiations for magazine rights are in progress, Mr. Martin added.  He declined to say how much Mrs. Oswald had been paid for the book and film contracts.

The agreement with Meredith Press stipulates that she will grant no further interviews until her book is completed, he stated.  New York Times, Jack Langguth

2/21/64
Marina and Mrs. Paine exchanged visits during which they spoke Russian.  "She used to beg Lee to teach her English," Mrs. Paine says of Marina, "but he only wanted to talk in Russian.  He insisted that his daughters learn Russian.  They used to have fights over that."  Life
2/22/94
New York messaged Dallas that New York Times special said Marina, has terminated agreements with attorney John Thorne and business adviser James Martin, has engaged William A. McKenzie, Dallas attorney who accompanied her brother-in-law to Washington this week.  Her decision may entangle terms of contracts she signed re book and movie rights to her memoirs.  Story also says she has moved to a private house in Dallas, leaving home of Martin family.  AP, 8:18 p.m. EST

At 8:50 p.m. CST Dallas replied: Reached Thorne at private dinner party and he said as far as he is concerned he still represents Mrs. Oswald ... Martin home phone does not answer.

2/23/64
Dallas - After her husband's death, Mrs. Oswald and her children were placed in protective custody by the Secret Service at a motel on the outskirts of Dallas.

... Oswald's mother, Mrs. Marguerite Oswald, and his brother, Robert, were also taken to the motel, where [James H. Martin] was employed as the assistant manager.

Robert Oswald ... decided that his home in Denton, some 30 miles from Dallas, was too small for his sister-in-law, her two children and the Secret Service agents assigned to protect her.

Mr. Martin volunteered to share his home and to leave his job at the motel to act as her agent.  Robert Oswald approved the arrangement, and Mr. Martin then selected [John] Thorne, who practices in suburban Grand Prairie, to serve as Mrs. Oswald's lawyer.  New York Times, Jack Langguth

2/23/64
Dallas --Mrs. Lee H. Oswald has terminated her agreement with the attorney and the business-advisor who had represented her since the shooting of her husband.

It was learned that she has engaged as her lawyer William A. McKenzie, the Dallas attorney who accompanied her brother-in-law, Robert Oswald, during his testimony in Washington last week before the Warren Commission.

John Thorne, her former attorney, said he had no comment on Mrs. Oswald's decision.  James J. Martin, her business adviser, was not available.

Martin had announced last week that Marina Oswald had signed contracts with Meredith Press in Des Moines, IA, for the book rights to her memoirs and with Tex-Italia Films, an Italian company, for the motion picture rights.

It is understood that Thorn and Martin are attempting to persuade her to reconsider her decision.  San Francisco Chronicle, New York Times Service
Other stories – AP,  New York Times, U.S. News & World Report give name as, James H. Martin

2/23/64
Dallas - John Thorne ... said today he still  holds a legal contract as legal advisor for Mrs. Marina Oswald.

... He said that as planned Mrs. Oswald had left the Martin home and had been visiting friends and relatives in this area.

… Neither Mrs. Oswald or Martin could be reached for comment.  AP, 3:50 p.m. CST

2/25/64
Dallas, [2/24] -- Mrs. Lee H. Oswald's former attorney warned today that he would go to court to retain a contract that guaranteed him 10 per cent of her income.

"I understand that Robert Oswald advised her to change attorneys," John Thorne, her former attorney, said.  "He had have advised her into the courthouse."

Mr. Thorne, who practices in suburban Grand Prairie, said he been unable to reach Marina Oswald, the widow of the accused assassin of President Kennedy, since learning that she had hired another lawyer.

"I don’t know where she is," he said.  "She has not been available to me."

… One informed source said that a key question in any legal dispute between Mrs. Oswald and her former; agent and attorney would be whether the agreements she signed were valid if they had not been read to her in Russian.  New York Times, Jack Langguth

2/26/64
Houston -- A Houston Post quoted an associate of Lee Harvey 0swald's widow tonight as saying Oswald planned to kill former vice president Richard M. Nixon.

The Post quoted Hames Martin, until a few days ago Mrs. Marina Oswald's business representative, as saying that evidence to this effect had been presented to the Warren commission investigating the assassination of President John F. Kennedy.

Nixon was in Dallas the day before President Kennedy was killed.  …

The Post said Martin would not say how he had learned of Oswald's alleged intent to assassinate Nixon.  …

Martin is scheduled to testify before the Warren Commission tomorrow. … AP, 11:39pes

2/27/64
Washington - James Martin denied today he has evidence that the accused assassin of President John F. Kennedy planned to kill former vice president Richard M. Nixon.  But the commission investigating the assassination said a published story quoting him as making that claim is before the panel.

... Martin was asked about a story in the Houston Post quoting him as saying he had evidence Oswald planned to shoot Nixon and had presented it to the investigating commission.  He said he only heard about the Nixon story yesterday, had no evidence to back it, and had not given any information about it to the Commission.

... Nixon was in Dallas the day before President Kennedy was assassinated.  AP, 3:53 p.m. CST

Martin's lawyer told reporters that "we were misquoted" in a published story this morning saying that Oswald planned to assassinate former vice president Richard m. Nixon.

"The Houston Post misquoted us," and that's all we can say," Paul W. Leech, Grand Prairie, TX, attorney told newsmen.  He did not elaborate.  AP, 11:18 p.m. CST

2/29/64
Dallas - James Martin ... reported today that contributions to the widow of the accused presidential assassin now total $68,000.

He also said that negotiations have been made for $132,000 in advance money for story deals that will eventually total $300,000.  …

Martin said that he will go to court if necessary to remain as business manager.

He said that the 68,000 in contributions received for Mrs. Oswald is on deposit in a Ft. Worth bank and cannot be withdrawn by her without his signature.  …  AP
3/64
... When Oswald was reported to have boasted to his wife that he was the sniper that took a shot at General Edwin Walker in Dallas last Spring, the Justice Department refused to comment; the FBI refused to comment; the Secret Service refused to comment; Dallas D. A. Henry Wade said, "I have not heard from any source that such a statement was made"; Dallas chief of detectives H. W. Stevenson, asked if Mrs. Oswald had made such a statement, relied, "Not to my knowledge"; Captain Glen King, information officer for the Dallas police, asked about a report that Oswald had been picked up by police for questioning in the Walker shooting, said, "No comment on that"; And General Walker himself had no comment on the investigation  ...  The Realist, Confessions of a Guilty Bystander, Paul Krassner, p. 4

3/2/64
[Account of how pictures of Oswald holding the rifle got into the hands of Life, Detroit Free Press and the A P.  Marguerite quoted as saying picture may have been faked, with head on another body.]  Newsweek, A Big Sale, p. 80.

See Weapon.

3/7/64
Dallas
Mrs. Marina Oswald says she doesn't want Jack Ruby sent to the electric chair for killing her husband, Lee Harvey Oswald.

In a copyrighted story in the Dallas Morning News, the widow of President Kennedy's accused assassin said she does not believe in capital punishment.

"When there is no war on, no human being has the right to take another's life," Marina said.  AP
3/9/64
Account of Martin-Thorne fight with Marina over contracts.  Says according to Martin, Robert Oswald also retained 10 percent take of Marina's income under agreement.  [Martin had 15, Thorne 10]

After the dispute:

And she moved from the Martins' house into a private home in suburban Richardson. 

Thorne also cited his own ten-year contract, though he acknowledged he hadn't given Mrs. Oswald a Russian translation - an omission that might become a major issue in a court test. U.S. News & World Report
3/19/64
Washington – [Mrs. Michael Paine, speaking to reporters after having testified before Warren Commission,] reported turning over to the commission letters she had received from Marina last year when the Oswalds were living in New Orleans.  …

Mrs. Paine said Mrs. Oswald's letters referred to her fear that she might have to return to Russia …  AP, 8:18 p.m. CST

4/9/64
Dallas - Baptism of Rachel, 6-month-old daughter of Marina Oswald, at the Saint Seraphim Eastern Orthodox Church by Father Dimitri Royster, who also baptized Marina's three-year old daughter, Junie, last spring.  Marina attends the church … Marina, looking frail. ...

…  was accompanied by Mrs. Declan Ford, who often serves as her interpreter.  AP

4/18/64
Dallas - Mrs. marina Oswald, with an estimated $60,000 in donations from the public tied up in a manager-agent squabble, has filed a petition asking an accounting of the money.

Mrs. Oswald, widow of accused President assassin Lee Harvey Oswald, also asked yesterday that two contracts she signed in early December be declared void.

… Judge Owen Giles yesterday ordered Thorne, Martin and Thorne's law partner, Paul W. Leech, to appear April 20 at 2 p.m. to show why an accounting should not be made.  Giles was sitting for Judge Dee Brown Walker, win whose 162nd District Court the matter will be heard.

Mrs. Oswald asked further that a trust fund and investment agreement involving $25,000 signed by Thorne and Martin be dissolved.

She also asked for return to her of personal belongings including clothes, pictures, a manuscript and letters be returned to her.

Mrs. Oswald said she had asked Thorne and Martin several times" for an accounting but that nothing had been forthcoming.

... Both Martin and Thorne told the Dallas Morning News they had no intention of bowing out of the contracts.  Although Martin said he had negotiated about $300,000 worth of movie contracts, Mrs. Oswald said she had not seen them.  AP
See Marina, 6/29/64, San Francisco Chronicle
4/30/64
Dallas - Mrs. Oswald petitioned 4/17 for a complete accounting of the more than $68,000 sent her and asking that contracts signed with Martin and Thorne as her personal manager and attorney-agent respectively, be declared null and void.

The defendants asked Mrs. Oswald's attorney, William McKenzie to agree to [an] extension of time [to 5/15].  McKenzie said Mrs. Oswald agreed.

… Marina claims in her suit that the contracts were never read to her in Russian and that she did not realize or comprehend what she was signing.

She claims further that never was Robert Oswald ... allowed to talk with her in private in all the days she resided at the Martin household, that, in effect, she had no one to go to for advice.  AP, 1:49 am CST

5/64
From the fourth letter, 10/22/61 [mistakenly dated 1959]: Marina, unfortunately, doesn't speak any English at all.  I would like her to learn, and I've bought some books for her on the subject but for now she doesn't want to learn, she speaks a little French already [she learned in grammar school], and she doesn't want to study another language for now.

Comment by Marguerite Oswald on this letter: I ... know that [when] Lee and Marina returned from Russia to Ft. Worth Marina immediately started to take English lessons through a university and Marina speaks broken English quite well.  Esquire; Lee Oswald's letters to his mother

5/19/64
Dallas - An accounting of more than $70,000 contributed to Mrs. Marina Oswald ... was filed with a Dallas district court yesterday.

... She asked in the suit that the contracts be voided and that all money be turned over to her, with $15,000 to [Martin and Thorne] as settlement.  [See 7/31]

Attorneys said yesterday's court action was another step toward a peaceful out of court settlement.  AP, 6:53 a.m. CST

5/20/64
Dallas - … The accounting … added that she received $5,000 for a photograph of Oswald which appeared on the cover of Life magazine.  AP 9:17 p.m. CST

6/11/64
Washington - Mrs. Oswald spent nearly six hours testifying before the commission today …

[When asked by reporters] whether she feels Oswald acted alone without collaborators, Mrs. Oswald said she doesn't know.  AP, 7:24 p.m. EDT

6/11/64
Washington – [Mrs. Oswald's attorney, William A. McKenzie] said Mrs. Oswald has rented a small cottage in a Dallas suburb, and that she is living off some money contributed by the Ft. Worth Council of Churches.  AP, 7:24 p.m. EDT

6/11/64
Washington - A presidential commission questioned Mrs. Lee Harvey Oswald today about reports she had locked up her husband after he reportedly had threatened to kill former vice president Richard M. Nixon.  “… Her replies were not reported.  …

Nixon was in Dallas the day before Kennedy was assassinated.  AP, 1:00 p.m. CST

6/12/64
Dallas - The Dallas News said today in a copyrighted story that Marina Oswald … believes she talked her husband out of an assassination attempt on former Vice President Richard M Nixon." ... The Nixon threat came last April or May, shortly before the Oswalds left for New Orleans to live ... "

…  "Oswald's widow also disclosed:

"That Oswald considered Edwin A. Walker an "extremist" and believed he had done right last 4/10 when he shot at [him].

... "That she feels certain [Oswald] was the lone assassin who killed President Kennedy ...but it was just because 'he wanted to be a big shot,' not because of hatred for Kennedy."  AP, 10:31 p.m. CST

6/14/64
Portrait of the Assassin, by Gerald R. Ford [with John R. Siles], Simon & Schuster; publication date 614/64.

Pre-publication story on book, "Book views role of Oswald's wife", New York Times
6/20/64
[On second appearance of Marina Oswald before Warren Commission.]

The commission heard testimony 6/11 from Mrs. Marina Oswald ...  In her second appearance, Mrs. Oswald was questioned closely about her previous allegation that Oswald had planned to assassinate former Vice President Nixon.

Before her latest testimony, the New York Post stated that the widow would be asked to "explain discrepancies in her previous account of her husband's activities before the assassination."  After she left, however, a Commission spokesman said Mrs. Oswald "was questioned about a report that her late husband threatened to kill Nixon."  The spokesman refused to elaborate.  National Guardian

6/20/64
The commission heard testimony 6/11 from Mrs. Marina Oswald …

Before her latest testimony, the New York Post stated that the widow would be asked to "explain discrepancies in her previous account of her husband's activities before the assassination."  National Guardian

6/29/64
Dallas - William A. McKenzie, attorney for Marina Oswald, asked the chief counsel of the Warren Commission yesterday to investigate unofficial publication of the diary of Oswald's life as a worker in the Soviet Union in a copyright Dallas Morning News dispatch.

"The release and printing of the diary prior to the Commission's report by anyone else is an invasion of privacy including personal property and publishing rights that belong to Marina Oswald and her children," McKenzie said.

"Mrs. Oswald has informed me that all of ... Oswald's personal effects including his diary, books, cameras, clothes and pictures were turned over to or picked up by an official agency, either of the city, county or federal government," McKenzie said.  San Francisco Chronicle, UPI
See Marina, AP, 4/18, 304 ACS: asks Martin and Thorne for return of personal belongings, including a manuscript.

7/64
Quoting Mrs. Paine: “[Marina] liked the United States, she told me, and she hoped to learn enough English to become part of the life here - to get a job.  Redbook; Interview of Ruth Paine, Jessamyn West

7/64
Quoting Mrs. Paine: "We visited two or three times after that [after meeting Marina for the first time] and began to confide as friends.  Marina said that awhile ago her husband had told her he wanted her to go back to the Soviet Union.  I didn't know whether this was said in the anger of a quarrel, whether he was really tired of her or whether he simply resented the expenses of a wife.  She had written to the Soviet embassy to inquire about going back.  When they wrote to ask why, she didn't answer.  She dropped the subject.

... Back in Irving, Ruth had a letter from Marina [in New Orleans] saying that she might yet be sent back to Russia.  Ruth got the name of a fellow Quaker in New Orleans and asked her to look in on the Oswalds.  But the Oswalds' relationship bettered and Marina wrote that all was well. Redbook; Interview of Ruth Paine, Jessamyn West

7/64
Mail, checks and gifts began to arrive for Marina, and these Ruth delivered to the Secret Service via the local police.  She also sent notes in Russian to Marina.

"Did you hear from her?"

"I had a note from her at Christmas.  She thanked me again for everything and said how sorry she was things had ended so badly.  She asked me to write, which I did." Redbook; Interview of Ruth Paine, Jessamyn West

7/64
Mrs. West: "What was Marina's attitude that night [11/22]?"

Mrs. Paine: "… By this time we knew that Lee was suspected of having killed the President as well as Officer Tippit.  Marina said that she did not feel that Lee had had anything against President Kennedy, that Lee had translated statements about and by Kennedy to her from the papers and magazines and that he had never criticized the President to her." Redbook; Interview of Ruth Paine, Jessamyn West

7/64
It was on 11/1, ten days after Marina returned from the hospital, that an agent of the FBI came to Ruth Paine's home.  He came, Ruth feels, to encourage Marina's confidence in the FBI.

"He told her she could appeal to them for help if she received blackmail threats from Russia.  I learned later that the FBI routinely offers protection of this sort to émigrés from Iron Curtain countries about a year after they have come to America."  Redbook; Interview of Ruth Paine, Jessamyn West

7/64
Until after the assassination, Ruth believed that Lee Oswald deceived both Marina and herself about the trip to Mexico.  Now she is not positive how much knowledge of the trip Marina had.  Some time after 10/4, when Oswald had called the Paine home to say that he was in Dallas, that he had found a room there and was looking for work, he asked to use Michael Paine's drill press in the garage.  He wanted to bore a hole in a coin so that Marina could wear it on a chain around her neck.  After the assassination, when officers of the law gathered up many of the Oswald effects left in the Paine home, Ruth saw what it was that Lee Oswald had drilled a Mexican peso. Redbook; Interview of Ruth Paine, Jessamyn West

7/17/64
Madill, OK - … [Marina] Oswald spent a brief vacation with Mr. and Mrs. Declan P. Ford of Richardson, TX, a Dallas suburb where the widow of Lee Harvey Oswald now lives, at Lake Texoma near here.

Madill Record reporter Wilbert Wiggs, who interviewed Mrs. Oswald during her stay at the Oklahoma-Texas border resort, wrote that few people knew she was at the lodge.

Her presence was discovered through personal long distance telephone calls, Wiggs' story, published yesterday, said.

Ford told Wiggs that Mrs. Oswald was "highly nervous around strangers, especially strangers who are reporters."  [Mrs. Ford acted as interpreter for Marina.] AP, 9:01 p.m. CST

7/24/64
Washington - There is a sharp difference of opinion in the ... Commission ... over its long-rumored report - which is still far from completed.  …

[Senator John Sherman] Cooper wants Mrs. Marina Oswald … to be recalled [the third time] for additional questioning.

It is Cooper's view Mrs. Oswald should be able to shed more light on her husband's activities and contacts in the U.S. and Russia than she has so far.  Be is frankly unsatisfied with what she has told the probers.

In her first appearance, Mrs. Oswald stated she knew nothing about her husband's outside life.  But under questioning the second time, she admitted being aware that he had attended "political meetings."  That was all the probers were able to get from her.  San Rafael Independent Journal, Robert S. Allen and Paul Scott

7/24/64
Dallas, [7/24] - Marina Oswald ... gave a deposition to a Warren Commission investigator today.

She appeared at U.S. Atty. Barefoot Sanders' office with her two small daughters.  The youngsters were carried by two Dallas-based Secret Service agents.

Mrs. Oswald gave the deposition to Wesley J. Liebeler, a commission lawyer.

It was the third time the Russian-born widow has given testimony to the Commission.  On two previous occasions she before the full commission in Washington.

Her lawyer, William McKenzie, accompanied Mrs. Oswald.  AP, 7:51 p.m. CST

7/28/64
Dallas – A woman from suburban Irving says she saw Lee Harvey Oswald driving an automobile two weeks before his arrest as the accused assassin of President John F. Kennedy.

Mrs. J. T. Hunter challenged the claim of Oswald’s widow, Marina, that he was unable to drive.  "I saw him behind the wheel," she said in a Dallas News interview yesterday …

Mrs. O. H. Whitworth, who owned the state at the time, said Oswald entered carrying an object she said looked like part of a gun. …  He then inquired about furniture, she said, and, left to bring back his wife and two young daughters. ...

After appearing before Warren Commission investigators for the third time Friday in Dallas, Mrs. Oswald was taken by Secret Service agents to the Irving store.  AP, 322acs

7/30/64
Dallas - Marina Oswald today settled her suit against her former business manager and attorneys by agreeing to pay them $12,000 for the voidance of contracts she had signed with them last December.

… She now has approximately $59,000 from donations …

… Mrs. Oswald claimed in the suit that she did not understand what she had signed with the two men.

… The settlement agreed to state that the defendants would turn over to Mrs. Oswald "any and all passbooks, monies, letters, documents, tape recordings, personal effects and property of any kind whatsoever" belonging to Marina or the two small Oswald children.  AP, 10:23 pcs

7/31/64
Dallas – Marina Oswald yesterday settled her suit against a former business manager and two attorneys.

She agreed to pay them $12, 500 in return for voiding personal service contracts made last December.

...  Mrs. Oswald now has approximately $59,000 from donations sent her by the American Public. ...  She also gains control of a $25,000 trust fund set up for her two daughters which the former advisers had charge of ...  San Francisco Chronicle, UPI, Dallas

See 5/19 [AP 653 ACS] She asked in the suit that the contracts be voided and that all money be turned over to her, with $15,000 to the men as settlement.

8/1/64
New York - advance story on account in Parade magazine of interview with Marina.  AP

8/2/64
Marina still getting mail.  Has received $70,000 in contributions to date.  Wants to stay in U.S.  Oakland Tribune, Sid Ross

8/12/64
In column on Warren Report, Considine says Marguerite contradicted under oath Marina's published statement that Oswald went to Mexico hoping to arrange to move to Cuba or return to Russia.  She said Marine had said to her some time before 11/22/63, "Mama, I write to Russian consul.  I want to go back to Russia.  I like America.  But Lee no get work."  San Francisco Examiner, Bob Considine

8/31/64
Dallas -- account of Marina finding “only" last week , while going through some of her dead husband's possessions" the stub of bus ticket from Mexico City to Laredo [one way] purchased in Mexico City 101 or 10/2.  Says she turned it over to the FBI for the Warren Commission. AP, A163dn 958acs

Same story [except for last paragraph] in San Francisco Chronicle, 9/1/64

9/64
[Visiting Dallas in 6/46, Feldman was escorted by Marguerite on a tour of the Oak Cliff area]

...  Our tour came several days after the newspapers reported how Oswald was prevented from starting a homicidal career with Richard Nixon only by his wife locking him in his room.

We went to the rooming house near 8th and Neely where Lee and Marina lived at the time.  Marguerite was admitted with sympathetic deference she went from room to room, pointing out that none of the doors had ever had locks on them.

Before we left, she photographed the fence against which Lee was supposed to be standing when he had his picture taken for future reference, holding a rifle, a gun and a Bolshevik newspaper.

"Look here," she said, and pointed to the bottom of the fence, obviously very different from what appeared on the dubious cover of Life.  The Realist, The Unsinkable Marguerite Oswald, Harold Feldman, p. 12

9/2/64
Dallas - Marina begins preliminary work on book, according to Mrs. Declan Ford.  No contract yet, book not yet outlined, just gathering material.  Mrs. Ford says pro writer will help, but does not name. AP
9/4/64
Washington - Three Warren Commission members, Cooper, Russell and Boggs, flying to Dallas tomorrow to question Marina again.  Commission already has questioned her twice here.

Cooper said that after reviewing Mrs. Oswald's testimony there were a number of additional questions he wanted to ask her about her background and associations.  AP

9/6/64
Dallas -- account of visit to Dallas by Russell, Cooper and Boggs.  Evasive replies to questions about Marina's fresh testimony.  Trio retraces most of the action scenes.  AP

9/7/64
Dallas - Senator Russell hints of possible surprises in final report.

"The case is not quite so simple as it appeared to the general public," Russell said.  "There will be a good deal to consider."

Gave no explanation about why commissioners wanted to interview Marina again, which was done at Dallas Naval Air Station.  San Francisco Chronicle UPI
9/7/64
Dallas - Russell and his fellow Commission members spend more than four hours late yesterday meeting with Marina Oswald.  ... Russell said the meeting required so long because he missed part of Marina's testimony in Washington, and they had her expand on other parts of that testimony.

Rankin said the visit concluded the Commission's investigation in Dallas.  San Francisco Chronicle UPI
9/20/64
Richardson, TX - Interview with Marina who says she never saw copy of Oswald's diary before it appeared in Dallas Morning News through leak.  Warren Commission never provided Russian translation.  She got copy only after Dallas News used and then she sold rights to Life which provided her with a copy.  Says Oswald didn’t begin diary until year and half after its narrative begins with his arrival in Moscow, and that he wrote it to help his image when he returned to U. S. where he expected trouble because of attempted defection.  New York Herald Tribune, Helen Yenne, with Katyn Ford translating.

9/20/64
New York - Summary of New York Herald Tribune series by Helen Yenne from interview with Marina in Richardson, TX, with Mrs. Katyn Ford translating.  AP

9/21/64
New York -- 2nd of two stories based on interview with Marina by Helen Yenne, with Katyn Ford translating.  Deals mostly with Oswald's secrecy in writing his diary, his attitude toward others, etc.  New York Herald Tribune

9/21/64
New York -- AP summary of 2nd of two articles in New York Herald Tribune by Helen Yenna based on interview with Marina at Richardson, TX.  She disputes passage in Oswald's diary where he says she gave him her phone number the first time she met him.  AP

9/26/64
New York - NBC carries interview with Marina saying Oswald wanted as early as 7/63, to go to Cuba, not back to Russia, and that he proposed to hijack a plane.  AP

9/26/64
New York – UPI  version of same story based on NBC interview; quoting Marina's fractured English in extreme.

9/27/64
Washington -- Warren Report may determine whether Marina gets citizenship she wants.

Marina and babies have trust fund of $67,000, tax-free except for interest.

Marina secluded at Richardson residence with Priscilla Johnson, writing book for Harper & Row.  New York Journal-American, Hearst Headline Service
[Same story appeared in San Francisco News Call-Bulletin, 9/28]

9/27/64
Ft. Worth – [Marguerite Oswald's reaction to the Warren Report, concluding with]:

... She criticized Oswald's widow, Marina, for accepting the official theory of the assassination and accused her daughter-in-law of lying to investigators a about Oswald's diary.

[Same story except last 8 paragraphs in San Francisco Examiner 9/28.]  AP, A192dn 434pcs [Adv 530pes]

9/27/64
Dallas - Marina does not comment on Warren Report, according to Jack Legett, Harper & Row rep who says Marina busy with a woman writer [Priscilla Johnson] doing a book.  Says any comment she may have will be in the book.  AP 212pcs

9/28/64
Dallas -- Marina does not comment  on Warren Report.  San Francisco Examiner UPI
9/28/64
Washington - Warren Commission chides State Department for using lax procedures with returning defectors.

...  Hindsight disclosed that at one point the State Department, wanting the troublesome Oswald out of the Soviet Union "as soon as possible," successfully urged the Immigration and Naturalization Service to drop its opposition to a U.S. entry visa for Oswald's Russian wife.

But the Report absolved the State Department officials of any favoritism, impropriety or disloyalty in the case involving the avowed Marxist who tired of Soviet life after 2½ years.  … San Francisco News Call Bulletin, AP

9/28/64
Washington - Warren Report says the bracelet Marina asked Oswald to bring her from Mexico was a cheap dime store item available in Dallas.  AP

9/28/64
Washington -Warren Report account of how Marina was watching TV when Ruth Paine told her shots came from building where Lee worked, whereupon she dashed to garage to see whether rifle there, saw blanket and heaved sigh of relief thinking rifle still there.  San Francisco Examiner, AP
10/2/64
Washington - Senator Russell calls Marina baffling personality, cites contradictions in her testimony which she blamed on linguistic misunderstandings, but he notes changes in her attitude.  Says Commission's report will not end debate on assassination which will continue a hundred years or longer.  AP 142aed

10/9/64
Harper & Row announced publication scheduled for next year of book on Marina by Priscilla Johnson, New York Times

11/5/64
The Oswald family, Elizabeth Hardwick, New York Review of Books
11/15/64
Anniversary 1964

11/15/64
Dallas - … For Marina … life is a Cinderella dream compared to the cheap apartments and beatings she knew a year ago.  She lives in a modern 3-bedroom brick house in a Dallas suburb.  …  She wears lipstick, frets over her hairdo like any 22-year-old, buys stylish clothes from the famous Nieman-Marcus store, likes beer and cigarettes.  ...

She lives comfortably but not lavishly on the $100,000 she received from donations and magazines.  She stands to make another $50,000 or so on a book being written by Priscilla Johnson …  She is not unaware of her monetary potential.  She became furious at a Dallas newsman for releasing her husband's Russian diary.  She could have made $100,000 from it if she had sold it instead of the fraction that she did receive.  …

"Black," said a man who has been close to her, "is not Marina's color." Oakland Tribune, AP, Sid Moody

11/19/64
Dallas - Marina in hospital with stomach tension hinted but not spelled out.

Says she originally received $85,000 in donations, of which about $50,000 left after buying $15,000 home in Richardson and paying $12,500 to former business manager and attorney.  Has been seen recently dating and in various night-spots. AP 651-1121acs

11/20/64
Dallas - Marina admitted to Doctors Hospital on 19th with stomach pains, tests for ulcers, outcome unknown.  Unidentified sources said she dreading the coming weekend and had had a very bad year.  Said she spend hundreds of hours giving testimony to FBI and Secret Service as well as Warren Commission.  "She never did get any real rest."  New York Times, Fred Powledge

11/24/64
Story. on Marina's testimony about Oswald, by John W. Finney, New York Times
11/24/64
, Washington – Marina disclosed in testimony she had written but never mailed a letter asking that Jack Ruby be spared the death penalty.  San Francisco Chronicle UPI
11/26/64
Dallas – Marina out of hospital “completely recovered” and visits Robert Oswald family for Thanksgiving at Wichita Falls.  AP

12/64
Mrs. Oswald’s plea – We are not guilty; give my children a chance to live, by Nerin Gun, Pageant
12/11/64
Phoenix – Marina staying in Oak Creek Canyon working on her biography with Priscilla Johnson and a friend, Jerome Hastings. Shops at Sedona and at Saks-Fifth Ave. in Phoenix.  AP

12/23/64
Ann Arbor, MI – Marina to enroll in University of Michigan’s English Language Institute, for 8-week course sponsored by First Presbyterian Church of Ann Arbor.

New York Times UPI version of same story.

12/28/64
Washington - extract from an exchange between Senator Russell and Marina during her testimony.  He questions her about wife-beating.  She claims she was afraid to marry a Russian because wife-beating common there, although Lee never beat her there.  New York Times

1/4/65
Ann Arbor – Marina enrolls in University of Michigan English course for foreign students.  No interviews to be permitted.  AP

2/26/65
Ann Arbor -- Marina finishes English course, average student, going back to Texas.  AP
2/27/65
Ann Arbor - Marina finishes English course, cries in sentimental mood at graduation ceremony when another student recalls fondly days on campus.  Nervous with photographers and reporters.  New York Times

3/9/65
For examples of FBI's inducements or rewards for cooperation, see story on Robert Glenn [3/9/65] and Gary Thomas Rowe [4/26/65]
Marina did not want to return to Russia; wanted to become American citizen.  New York Times
3/22/65 to 8/18/65
Notes on chronology of legal and other moves by Marina to gain legal custody of the rifle.

3/22/65
Dallas - Mrs. Lee Harvey Oswald has asked a court to name her administrator of her husband's estate, it was disclosed today.  …  The application appeared to be chiefly a legal maneuver.  Oswald owned no real estate and had little money.  New York Times [UPI]

3/22/65
Dallas - Marina, files application to become administrator of Lee s estate.  AP

UPI version of same story, including indication by Marina she plans become a citizen.  New York Times
3/26/65
Dallas - He rifle used to assassinate President Kennedy and the pistol with which police officer J. D. Tippit was slain have been valued officially at $10,000 ... by three appraisers appointed by county probate court.  At the same time Mrs. Marina Oswald was named by Probate Judge F. W. Bartlett, Jr. as community administrator for the property.

Harry McKay, administrative assistant to Judge Bartlett, and one of three appraisers, said Mrs. 0swald& attorney indicated that a $10,000 bid for the two weapons had been made by a gun collector.”  AP 805pcs

3/27/65
Dallas, [3/26] - Mrs. Oswald's attorney, William Blaylock, said his client was anxious to sell the items to provide for her security.  Blaylock said Mrs. Oswald had received a $10,000 bid for the pistol and rifle from a gun collector.  San Francisco Chronicle, UPI
3/31/65
LA asks NY How much money Marina has received in contributions.  NY replies carried story last 11/19 that after paying off business manager and attorney [and buying home] had about $50,000 left of $85,000 contributed. Said understood she had received some income from projected book since, but does not know amount or publisher [Harper & Row].  AP

4/18/64
Houston - Marina and daughters in Houston where girls attended first Easter egg hunt.  Marina visiting The Rev. B. F. Mathis, pastor of the Church of God of the Prophecy who father of Marina’s a neighbor in Richardson, Mrs. Cora Lee Smith.  AP

5/65
The importance of [Marina] Oswald's evidence has not been sufficiently realized.  In an article entitled A Lawyer's Notes on the Warren Commission Report, Mrs. Alfreda Scoby wrote: "The fact is inescapable that the report, although crammed with facts that would not be admissible on the trial of a criminal case, sets out the whole picture in a perspective a criminal trial could never achieve."  It has sometimes been suggested that if Oswald had lived and could have been tried, a truer picture of the facts would have been established than was that achieved by the Commission.  Mrs. Scobey has, however, pointed out that the opposite is probably the truth, because if Oswald had lived his wife could not have given evidence at his trial.  [Under Texas law, "The husband and wife may, in all criminal actions, be witnesses for each Other; but they shall in no case testify against each other except in a criminal prosecu​tion for an offense committed by one against the other." (Alfredda Scobey: A Lawyer's Notes on the Warren Commission Report. American Bar Association Journal: 1/1965.)]  She would not have been able to testify concerning his ownership of the rifle from which the shots were fired, she could not have identified the blue jacket and the white jacket which were material in regard to which the murder of Patrolman J. D. Tippit, she could not have given evidence concerning the abortive plan to kill General Walker, and she could not have identified various material photographs.  Above all, she could not have given evidence concerning possible motives that might have induced Oswald to assassinate the President.  New York University Law Review, Arthur L. Goodhart, p. 407

5/65
Walter Winchell says she may marry Russian-speaking insurance man.  Photoplay Magazine

5/9/65
Washington - The rifle that killed President Kennedy would remain in government hands forever if Congress approves a bill to be proposed by the Justice Department.  …  It also will include the 38-caliber pistol ... the [authoritative federal source] said.

...  Under the bill being drafted by the Justice Department, persons whose property is claimed by the government could sue in federal court for compensation.

The Justice Department will base its proposal solely on the argument that because the assassination will b burned into the memories of Americans for generations to come, the key physical evidence should be made absolutely secure so that no doubts can be raised about it in the near or distant future.

"We want it always to be in hands responsible to the government, so that no questions as to its authenticity can be raised if for instance, the investigation is ever reopened," the government informant said.

The bill resulted from a request [when?] by the now-disbanded Warren Commission that the Justice Department solve the problem of what to do with the evidence it examined ...

… The department has determined that it has no power to claim forfeiture of the property by its owners," he added.

"People are entitled to be paid for it," he said.  "The courts will determine how much …"  AP, 118ped, Joseph E. Mohbat

5/24/65
Denver - A. Denver area oil man and gun collector, claiming to be the lawful owner of the 6.5 mm. Mannlicher-Carcano rifle with which President John F. Kennedy was assassinated, filed suit today in U.S. District Court to get the gun from the Justice Department.

John J. King, of Englewood, CO, alleges in the suit that he purchased the rifle [and pistol, telescopic sight, cartridge clip], from the estate of Lee Harvey Oswald last New Year s Eve.

King said sale negotiations were carried out through an unidentified agent in Dallas, TX., "in order to keep my [King's] name out of it as long as possible."

The action alleges the U.S. Attorney-General has the firearms in custody and refused to give them up.

The Justice Department "has been using the euphemism that 'the matter is under study,'" King said.

He said the weapons, valued in the lawsuit at more than $10,000, were purchased strictly for his private collection and were not intended to be put on public exhibit.  AP 846pmd

5/25/65
Denver - John J. King, oil man, files suit in U. S. District court yesterday to get Oswald's gun from Justice Department.  Says bought last New Year’s eve.  San Francisco Chronicle, AP
Sale of rifle filed under Rifle, 3/26/65 ff

6/2/65
Accounts of Marina' s marriage to Kenneth Jess Porter.  What info available on him.  AP, Dallas Morning News, San Diego Tribune
6/6/65
Dallas – Marina Oswald, then and now.  Feature on changes in Marina.  AP Robert Ford

6/10/65
Story on Portrait of the Assassin by Representative Gerald E. Ford, says Ford speculates that Marina may unwittingly have goaded Lee to murder JFK by refusing to live with him.  New York Times
6/14/65
Americana: Love story.  Fairy tale treatment of Marina's marriage to Porter.  Newsweek
8/17/65
A special congressional bill which would permit the government to permanently seize the weapons is ... pending and a federal civil suit is now on file in Denver.

In that suit, a Colorado oil man filed for possession of the weapons, which he claimed were sold to him by the widow of the assassin for $10,000.

John J. King of Inglewood, CO, filed the suit against the Justice Department, but Mrs. Marina Oswald did not join in the action.  [Presumably her position was that she already had sold it.]

In addition to the reported sale price, another payment was to be made if the guns were recovered from the government.  Dallas Times-Herald, Jerry Richmond

8/17/64
The rifle and pistol owned by ... Oswald have been shipped to Dallas for official "seizure" by an agency of the federal government, the Times-Herald learned Tuesday afternoon [8/17].

...  The government's intentions to confiscate the weapons were confirmed by Assistant U.S. Attorney Tim Timmons late Tuesday in a statement authorized by the Department of Justice.

“The weapons are being proceeded against by the government, giving notice of summary forfeiture of the firearms under appropriate federal statues," Mr. Timmons said.

This procedure will be to advertise three times on three consecutive weeks, giving notice to all claimants having interest in the weapons.

He said that in addition actual notice to the parties with apparent interest had been served Tuesday.  Any claimant has 30 days to file a claim and cost bond, and if they do so the government will file a liability in federal court.

If no claimant comes forward, the Treasury will claim the weapons in 30 days.

… It was learned that a newspaper legal notice is being prepared to run Wednesday informing the public of the administrative seizure.  … [If some owner steps forward to protest] the government is required to take steps to file a liability in federal court, where a hearing will determine if the guns can be seized.  Dallas Times-Herald, Jerry Richmond

8/18/65
Dallas – [Paraphrase.]  Marina had husband, Kenneth J. Porter, arrested;  affidavit said he slapped her, "frightened her with a gun" and threatened to kill himself.  Time and date of quarrel not given.  "After stormy overnight row" [8/17?].  She signed affidavit "late this afternoon" [8/18].  AP, 725 pcs, Tom Johnson [8/19]  AP, 502 pcs, Tom Johnson

8/17/65
Notice of seizure of weapons sent to "parties with apparent interest".

8/18
Legal notice to appear in newspapers.

8/18-21/65
Accounts of Marina’s monumental row with her new husband, who she said threatened suicide and was toting a gun.  She asked he be placed under peace bond, etc.  Row patched up by Dallas authorities.  He accused her of seeking publicity. AP, UPI, San Francisco Examiner, New York Times, etc.

8/27/65
Long account of negotiations between Marina and John J. King for sale of rifle.  Indicates her main concern, aside from money, was U.S. citizenship.  Life

8/27/65
A lot of people were watching television around 11:20 a.m. on Sunday, 11/24/63.  John J. King of Denver was among them.

… From long working acquaintanceships with lawyers, King had become moderately well versed in the law.  Watching TV, he began to think like an attorney.  "I had been subconsciously under the impression that Oswald would be convicted and that the weapon would therefore revert to the state," he recalls.  "I was reading this in the context of Colorado law …  But when Ruby shot Oswald, it ... struck me ... that under American jurisprudence, Lee Harvey Oswald is forever innocent.  He has not been convicted and you are not guilty until you've been tried and there's no way to try him.

"This led me to the conclusion that Oswald might still own the Kennedy gun - or his estate might.  So I called up my good friend Bill Garrett, who was a lawyer in Dallas. Bill put an associate on. it and he briefed the hell out of it and came up in two days and said - no question about it, that gun belongs to Lee Harvey Oswald."

Over the next year King learned a lot more about Texas law - and the law in general: 1. Under Texas law the weapon would not have reverted to the state even had Oswald lived to be convicted.  2. Texas is a community-property state, and since Oswald died without making a will, community property acquired during marriage would revert to the spouse.  3. The administrator of a community-property estate has a right to dispose of the estate's assets in order to meet the estate's obligations, without referral to probate court.  Life: Cursed Gun, Keith Wheeler, p. 64

8/27/65
On 12/4/63 ... [John J.] King wrote Mrs.-Marina Oswald in care of the U.S. Secret Service in Dallas.  …  But making actual contact with [her] took time.  At first all negotiations were arms-length between King's representatives and Marina's, but the process was complicated by frequent changes in Marina's spokesmen; they kept getting fired.  Finally in 7/64 King sent his own representative.

"He walked up and pressed the doorbell and got her out of bed at 10 o'clock in the morning and said he wanted to chat with her," King remembers.  "She tried to close the door but he said he'd come all the way from Denver to talk to her, so she let him in and turned on the hi-fi and made him some coffee.  He got her signature."

It was not all that simple, however.  Negotiations dragged on for months.  There was a question of total future validity of Marina's title to her husband's estate.  Her lawyers arranged for Marina to file a formal intention to become a U.S. citizen.  That done, it was arranged for her to be formally appointed administratrix of the community property by the Probate Court in Dallas.  As such she had the right to dispose of the estate.

But Marina was unwilling to kick up her heels and demand her rights in a strange country.  "She was very reluctant about pressing these things," King remembers.  "We tried to get it done in her name but she wouldn't stand hitched for that.  She was afraid they would cut her off at the pass someplace.  Her desire all the time was to become a citizen of the U.S. and she was afraid to get too tough with any of these bureaucrats for fear they might, just whoosh, send her back off to Minsk."  Life: Cursed Gun, Keith Wheeler, p. 65

9/5/65
A Denver oil man has officially claimed ownership of weapons used to assassinate President John F. Kennedy and kill Dallas policeman J. D. Tippit.

John J. King, president of Cortez Oil Co., filed the claim Friday [9/3] under terms of an advertisement by the Internal Revenue Service, wire services reported.

The IRS advertised last month that anyone claiming the weapons must file a claim ... before [9/17].

... Mr. King said that Oswald's widow, Marina ... signed a contract agreeing to sell him the guns.  Under terms of the contract, he has paid [her] $10,000 with another $35,000 to be paid when the guns are delivered.

… The government has obtained two postponements in the suit filed by Mr. King. Justice Department attorneys are presently required to file an answer by 9/23.  Dallas Times-Herald
11/20/65
Marina Oswald Porter's house is in the $20,000 range, clean and comfortable.  She spoke with disarming candor.  When told her daughter, Rachel, 2, was a lovely little girl, Marina said, "No, she is not lovely.  It is something one must say to a mother, I suppose.  Pretty maybe, but she is not a lovely girl."

She displayed a recent magazine article which, interpreting the Warren Report, said the Russian-born Marina appeared shallow, adaptable, materialistic and self-centered.

"It is pretty close to the truth, I guess," she said casually.  "It made me angry at first- about 10 seconds - but when I cooled off I decided he [the author] has analyzed as best he could.  And he did a good job, I think.  He was not against me nor was he for me.  I think he came pretty close.  But I am not materialistic.”  AP, Mike Cochran, 801 aes

2/22/66
Dallas, [2/21] - Federal Judge Joe E. Estes ruled today after a three-hour hearing that the Government could confiscate the rifle used by ... Oswald …

… Oswald's widow apparently will get to keep the $10,000 paid her by Mr. King regardless of today's ruling.  Mr. King said his contract with her did not provide for a return of the money.  New York Times, Martin Waldron

6/20/66
Dallas - Marina expecting third child.  Story says.  Porter quit his electronics job and house up for sale, considering moving to Greenville where he has relatives.  AP

7/4/66
Richardson, TX - Marina has 6 pound. 12 ounce boy.  San Francisco Chronicle
AP version. says child named Mark Wayne

7/26/66
Dallas - Port era moving day.  AP
7/27/66
Greenville - Porters move from Dallas, avoid reporters.  Police captain is Narvel Gasway, who with Sgt. Dwight Gasway are brothers of Mrs. Tippit.  AP
8/15/66
Of course, Mr. Hoover admitted, there would always be some extremists who would not yield to ... reasoning, but the Commission must not be misled by them.  For instance, there was Mrs. Marguerite Oswald, Oswald's mother.  She was 'emotionally unstable': she believed her son to be innocent and had gone about saying so 'for money': i.e. she had given public lectures.  Mr. Hoover believed that she had made 'a substantial sum'.  For these reasons Marguerite Oswald must not be heeded.  On the contrary, Marina Oswald, Oswald's widow, was 'a far more reliable person': she believed that her husband was guilty.  Mr. Hoover did not mention that she had made ten times as much money by insisting on Oswald's guilt as her mother-in-law had made by protesting his innocence.  Rush to Judgment, Introduction, Hugh Trevor-Roper, p. 8

10/5/66
Austin, TX - The Texas Court of Criminal Appeals reversed today the death-penalty conviction of Jack Ruby for the murder of Lee Harvey Oswald.

... Marina Oswald ... said, "There isn't anything I want to say except that I don't want him to go to the electric chair or anything like that.  I think he's been punished enough already.  I've always said that.  He's a human being, too.  That's all I can say."  AP 1213 pcs

11/21/66
Very terse recap of how Marina was taken in by the Secret Service, given a "business advisor," 4 days later made a TV appearance to broadcast her believe in her husband's guilt before any proof had been produced, and then later testified before the Warren Commission.  The New Leader, As I Was Saying, Leo Sauvage, p. 21  [A sur-rebuttal to Alexander to Bickel].

2/25/67
Dallas - Quiet life she lives with husband, who now a tavern keeper.  House on Emerson street in University Park, a suburb.  Pushes grocery cart in supermarket, dresses stylishly when appears in yard or shopping.  No servants, apparently does own cooking and housework.

Times-Herald says federal agents apparently are no longer interested in her.  AP B34

3/16/67
Dallas - Marina denies she knows anything of principals in New Orleans investigation - Ferrie, Shaw, Bertrand, Russo. "No, I know nothing of them."

Said Garrison had not contacted her about his investigation.  [Russo testified Oswald had discussed troubles with his wife with Ferrie] who replied: "Don't worry, I'll handle it."  San Jose Mercury, AP-UPI
3/18/67
Las Vegas - Joe Tonahill, at a meeting of the American Trial Lawyers Association, where he said 99 per cent of the evidence against Oswald came from his widow and could not have been used against him in an ordinary court.

"She is the only person who ever identified the rifle as his."  He added she also was the only person to link the purchase of the rifle under an assumed name to Oswald.  AP B29





































